Mabank High School



Theatre Arts Handbook 2023-2024

Welcome to Mabank Theatre!

Theatre Arts at Mabank HS is open to all students at the introductory and advanced level. We study theatre history, acting skills, directing, film and there are several opportunities to perform onstage and gain backstage experience. Aside from class performances, students have the opportunity to audition for the Fall Musical and any spring show/performance. Students enrolled in the Production class will be competing in the One Act Play competition in the Spring. Take a moment to look through this handbook. This document is full of important information about what is to be expected as part of the Mabank Theatre Arts Department.

Table of Contents

Communication	
Social Media Use by Student	3
Social Electronic Media Behavior Standard	
Conduct & Expectations	5
Demerit/Merit System	6
Auditions	10
Cast & Crew Contract	11
Rehearsal Rules & Procedures	
Performance Guidelines	17
School Owned Property	18
UIL Eligibility	
Thespian Honor Society	20
Thespian Honor Society Points	21
Letterman Jackets	22

Communication

Communication among parents, students, and the theatre director is important to the success of the program and to help each student reach his/her potential. We encourage parents to be actively involved in the GHS Theatre Program.

- Website: The MISD website <u>www.mabankisd.net</u> includes a Fine Arts section that includes a Theatre page. This page is where any announcements and important dates/info will always be updated. You can also find class "year-at-a-glance" sheets, info on Thespian Honor Society, and see pictures of former shows.
- Social Media: We have three social media accounts, (Facebook, Tiktok, and Instagram). All social media accounts are up to date with current announcements, pictures, and other information regarding MHS theatre. Please visit the accounts to see updates and pictures of ongoing events.
- Email- rrhorton@mabankisd.net
- Phone- (903) 880 1600 x2077
- Methods of Distribution Most communication regarding classroom events are
 done through electronic means via email, Remind, and google classroom. Any
 forms needing to be signed and returned will be given to the students as well as
 uploaded to the google classroom. Remind will be used based on classes and
 performances to ensure that they are kept up to date with classroom information.

Social Media Use by Students

Everything posted on social media is public information – any text or photo placed online is completely out of your control the moment it is placed online – even if security settings are listed as "private". Information (including pictures, videos, and comments) may be accessible even after removal. Once a photo or comment on a social networking site has been posted, that photo or comment becomes the property of the site and may be searchable even after being removed.

Similar to comments made in person, Mabank ISD will not tolerate disrespectful comments and behavior online, such as:

- Derogatory language or remarks that may harm other students or teachers; or representatives of other schools, including comments that may disrespect opponents.
- Incriminating photos or statements depicting violence; hazing; sexual harassment; full or partial nudity; inappropriate gestures; vandalism, stalking; underage drinking, selling, possessing, or using controlled substances; or any other inappropriate behaviors.

- Creating a serious danger to the safety of another person or making a credible threat of serious physical or emotional injury to another person.
- Indicating knowledge of an unreported school or team violation—regardless if the violation was unintentional or intentional.

All students are expected to adhere to the District's Discipline Management Plan and Student Code of Conduct. However, sponsors, directors and coaches of extracurricular activities may develop and enforce standards of behavior that are higher than the District's Discipline Management Plan and Student Code of Conduct and may condition membership or participation in the activity on adherence to those standards. Extracurricular standards of behavior may take into consideration conduct that occurs at any time, on or off school property. A student may be removed from participation in extracurricular activities or may be excluded from school honor and leadership organizations for violation of organizational standards of conduct of an extracurricular activity or for violation of the Discipline Management Plan and Student Code ofConduct. Higher standards of conduct are expected of students representing the District's extracurricular activities which are considered a privilege. Students may be asked to sign a written contract agreeing to adhere to a higher standard of conduct as outlined by each extra-curricular program.

Social Electronic Media Behavior Standard

Any student member of an extracurricular organization representing themselves, or their organization, in an unfavorable, questionable or illegal manner through social electronic media (i.e. Twitter, Instagram, Facebook, websites, blogs, text messages, chat rooms, etc.) communication devices in such a way as to bring discredit, dishonor, or disgrace on their organization or members of any other school organization will be subject to the disciplinary actions determined by appropriate school personnel including organization coaches and directors. Social electronic media violations can result in removal from the extra-curricular organization through the end of the current semester. A second violation can result in removal from the extra-curricular organization.

Conduct and Expectations

Audience etiquette

- During a performance students are expected to:
 - Dress appropriately (school dress code)
 - Remain quiet
 - Refrain from use of cell phones or iPods
 - Pay attention
- Following a performance students are expected to:
 - Applaud
 - Refrain from yelling or screaming
 - Avoid throwing anything up onto the stage
 - Be respectful

Classroom Rules

- If it's not yours, don't touch it.
- Participation is necessary in order to be successful. You will be as successful as the amount of effort you are willing to expend.
- Audience etiquette is always in fashion. Do not interrupt when there is a
 performance of any kind taking place. Positive feedback, when asked for, is an
 important part of analysis.
- Remain quiet, attentive & in seat when teacher talks/gives notes, or others speak/perform.
- Talk one at a time.
- Bring supplies everyday
- No food, gum or drink allowed in class
- Stay on task
- Display courtesy and respect for others at all times
- Be in seat & starting warm-up or journaling when bell rings.
- Jacket, purses, etc... must be on the back of the chair, floor, or the empty table—not on your desk or lap.
- Cell phones, laptops, tablets, and other technology may only be used with teacher permission. They should be in the CELL PHONE POCKET ONLY. If seen being used without permission, it can be taken up and given to the office. Only a parent or guardian can pick up for \$15.

<u>Consequences</u>: If any member of the theatre departments goes against the conduct expectations, he/she will be asked to correct his/her behavior and apologize to the class. If this becomes an ongoing issue, the teacher will schedule a meeting with the student and, if necessary, a call will be made to that student's parent/guardian. Additionally, demerits may be issued to the director's discretion (please see demerit/merit section for more info.)

Demerit/Merit System

The point/demerit system is designed to strengthen the values of our community as well as respect and reverence for one another. When a student's behavior contradicts the core values of the Mabank Theatre department, the student will receive points or "demerits". With so many students in so many different places it is important to be able to count on responsible behavior for success and safety. Depending on the severity of the infraction, different amounts of demerits may be issued, along with further disciplinary action if needed. Demerits and Merits DO roll over each year, and students do not get to erase any infractions from previous years without earning merits to cancel them out.

Demerits

- The following examples are illustrative only.
- The Mabank ISD theatre directors reserve the right to treat comparable breaches of conduct in a similar manner to those listed below.
- Below is a list of the various infractions for which demerits will be assigned.
- This is just a base guide, and demerits can be added for any reason determined by the director(s).

Offense	Demerits		
Involved in a unauthorized group chat	4		
Discipline report in any class	4		
Unexcused Absence from Rehearsal (No call/text)	3		
Bad-mouthing other students, director(s) or the theatre department	3		
Lying to the director(s) or student leads	3		
Excused Absence from Rehearsal (Including Doctors Appts, Work, or anything that could have been scheduled differently.)	2		
Leaving rehearsal early	2		
Leaving after a performance without the all-clear	2		
Eating food or non-water drinks on stage, on rail, or in the booth	2		
Failure to clean up after yourself	2		

Eating in costume	2	
Not properly putting away mics and mic packs	2	
Arguing/Talking back with the director(s) or student leader		
Being disruptive backstage during class/rehearsal		
Calling other students rude or disrespectful names	2	
Disrespectful remarks, comments or "looks" toward other students, staff and/or volunteers	2	
Not helping set up and/or strike	2	
Using cell phone backstage or during class/rehearsal	2	
Spreading gossip/rumors unrelated to you	2	
Repeating a behavior that was recently reprimanded	2	
Unexcused tardy to rehearsal	2	
Propping open an outside door	2	
Not dressed properly for rehearsal	1	
No script	1	
Using script after off-book date	1	
Hanging out in dressing rooms any time other than during a show or given recent permission from director	1	
Not participating in warm-ups	1	
In tech booth when not given recent permission	1	
Leaving the black box during class without permission	1	
Off-task during class/rehearsal	1	
Giving attitude to the director(s) or a student leader	1	
Not properly hanging up costume	1	

Inappropriate language	1
Not writing down blocking and needing it repeated several times	1
Not listening to stage managers	1
Goofing off/being too loud while backstage during rehearsal	1

- If you accumulate 9 demerits for any reason, you will be removed from the cast and put on probation if a member of Thespian Honor Society.
- If I make any changes to the rehearsal schedule they will be posted on the Callboard (outside the black box), in Remind and on the theatre website at: https://www.mabankisd.net/page/fa.theatre
- You will be held responsible for any changes made.

Merits

- Students may erase demerits by earning merits in different ways.
- 1 Merit removes 1 Demerit.
- Total merits earned back are at the director's discretion.
- Students can also earn Merits even if they do not have any Demerits.
- There will be a reward (field trip, pizza party, Starbucks gift card, tbd) for those with more than 5 Merits at the end of the year

Action	Merit	
Planning a theatre social event	4	
Cleaning black box, dressing rooms, shop and/or storage rooms	2	
Bringing snacks/drinks for everyone for a rehearsal	2	
Working tech for a non-theatre event	2	
Attending a live play or musical	1	
Attending another MISD Fine Arts event	1	
Noticed for good work ethic during rehearsal/class	1	
Helping others with their material	1	
Leading warm-ups properly	1	

Positive affirmations to cast/crew	1
Sweeping backstage/black box	1
Picking up all trash in black box and/or backstage	1

Dismissal

Below is a summary of the rules:

- You will be dismissed after 9 demerits. THAT MEANS THAT:
- You cannot miss more than 3 unexcused rehearsals (at 3 demerits a piece).
- You WILL NOT be given demerits if you stay home from school and then
 rehearsal due to Illness. If you are sick, please stay home. We don't want it. If
 you have any other reason for staying home from school I expect you to be at
 rehearsal.
- You cannot leave early from rehearsal more than 3 times (at 3 demerits apiece) for ANY reason.
- You cannot miss rehearsal due to work/appointments more than 5 times (at 2 demerits a piece).
- You cannot be late to rehearsal more than 5 times (at 2 demerits a piece). On time means dressed in rehearsal clothes, standing on stage, ready to warm up at the start of the rehearsal time.
- Any combination of the above can get you dismissed from the cast so be VERY CAREFUL.

Auditions

- Any student wishing to be in the Musical, One Act Play, or Spring Show cast must go through an after-school audition.
- The audition day will be announced during school announcements, posted on the call board, on google classroom and fliers will be posted in the hallways.
- Auditions will usually be a cold read style, which means actors will be given parts
 of the script to read and perform during auditions.
- The sign-up sheet will be posted on the wall outside the Theatre Arts room.
- Students MUST fill out an audition form so that they may list their preferred roles, list any conflicts with the rehearsal schedule, and inform the directors of their phone number, address, and email addresses.
- The cast list will be posted on the call board outside the theatre classroom as well as the google classrooms. This list may not be posted until the director has taken several days for extra consideration.

Musical

- Any student wishing to participate in the Musical must go through an after-school audition and/or video audition.
- The student must prepare as least 1 minute of a song suggested on the audition form.
- Callback Auditions will consist of short readings from the script itself, and possibly short portion of a song from the musical.

One Act Play

 Any student auditioning for the OAP must be in the production class or able to get into it.

Casting Guidelines

The following items are considered when making a final casting decision:

- Vocal Technique (strong, supported voice)
- Physical ease onstage
- Characterization/ Believability
- Work Ethic
- Classroom Behavior
- Academic Standing/ Eligibility
- Scheduling Conflicts

Cast & Crew Contract

As a member of the cast and/or crew:

1. I agree to attend all rehearsals for which I am scheduled.

Students must attend all their rehearsals scheduled for which they are called. Monthly calendars with rehearsal dates will be distributed to students. If a student is absent, it prevents others from getting the most out of rehearsal time. Students can miss a rehearsal if it is excused by a parent due to an illness or emergency only. Excused absences can be made for medical appointments or pre-play planned appointments or other events.

(**Sports and other Elective Activities at Mabank are supported by this production team. We will do everything we can to communicate with your coaches but YOU MUST DO THE SAME. You will be excused for half of our rehearsals only on practice days. Any other related activities must be communicated to the directors.)

- 2. If I must miss a rehearsal for any reason, I will personally contact the Director or Stage Manager(s) prior to the beginning of the rehearsal. Failure to do so may result in my <u>removal</u> from the show.
- 3. I will remain at rehearsals until the rehearsal is completed or I am excused. If I leave early without permission or prior approval by the Director, I understand that I may be <u>dismissed</u> from the show.
- 4. If I miss a rehearsal and do not contact the Director or Stage Manager(s), I understand that my lack of consideration is enough for me to be <u>dismissed</u> from the show entirely.
- 5. If I miss more than one rehearsal for any reason, I understand that I may <u>lose my</u> role.
- 6. I agree to assist with the production of the show in any capacity.
- 7. I agree to meet "off book" deadlines by having lines memorized.
- 8. I understand that I may be personally responsible for parts of my costume.
- 9. I understand that I am part of a team effort, so I must have a positive attitude, even on days when I have a million reasons to not be open-minded and willing to work.

Respecting me as well as others in this cast is detrimental to a great performance. It is very important to create a team environment for a good production. If you are: disrespecting me or others, defying authority, disruptive during rehearsals or vandalizing school property, you will be removed from the production.

- 10. I understand this show requires collaboration, and I agree to contribute my ideas and energy at appropriate times.
- 11. I understand the Director will make final choices pertaining to my role(s), which includes acting, props, set, lights, sound, costume choices, and everything in between. I

understand that failure to respect the director's decisions can result in my <u>dismissal</u> from the show.

- 12. I agree to do all that I can to make rehearsals the best they can be.
- 13. I understand that during rehearsals I am to remain quiet until my part begins onstage.
- 14. If I cause problems by disrupting the cast or the Director during rehearsal, I understand that I may <u>lose</u> my role in the show.
- 15. I understand that all rehearsals and shows are a school function; thus, all school policies will be strictly enforced.
- 16. I understand that we are a team and I will do my best to support that team with the overall goal of creating an outstanding production. I will uplift my fellow cast and crew instead of bringing them down.
- 17. I agree to leave my personal drama at the door and focus solely on the production while at rehearsals and events. I will also leave my personal romantic life at the door. If I choose to date someone in the cast or crew, I will not make it known during rehearsals or productions. Others should not be able to tell when looking at us.
- 18. I understand that group chats are not allowed during a production unless the director is included. I understand that the director's group chat is solely for the purpose of communicating for the production. If I choose to create a separate group chat, I understand that it could result in my <u>dismissal</u> from the production.

Rehearsal Rules & Procedures

1. Show up.

You are expected to be at rehearsal every day you are called, unless otherwise notified. If for some reason you are not able to make rehearsal, it is your responsibility to notify me and the stage managers as soon as possible. However, one or more unexcused absences may lead to your dismissal from the production. Emergencies and unforeseen illness/injury will be excused, but please make sure to notify Ms. Horton directly and immediately.

2. Be on time.

Please do not waste time getting to rehearsal. You are expected to sign in when you get here and remain in the rehearsal space (do <u>not</u> sign in & disappear and <u>never</u> sign in for someone else). Start time is when rehearsal begins, not when you should arrive. Count on a call from an SM or ASM if you're not at rehearsal 5 minutes before call. If you are late, you will be counted tardy. If you are present but do not sign in, you will be counted tardy. No exceptions. Remember:

If you're early, you're on time. If you're on time, you're late. And if you're late... there will be consequences.

3. Respect your directors.

This means listening when a director (Ms. Horton or Mrs. Morales) is addressing you, as well as having a good attitude. For some of you, this will be your first theatre experience at MHS. It's okay to allow time to adjust and for there to be a learning curve, but never allow this to affect your work ethic or ability to get along with directors.

4. Respect stage managers & technicians.

Stage Managers (SMs) and Assistant Stage Managers (ASMs) are in leadership positions. There will be times when they are in charge of running rehearsal. In those cases, they are standing in for the director and should be treated as such. If they instruct you to do something, you should respond as if it were a director asking you. During rehearsal, they are there to make sure everyone is on task and doing their job. It is in your best interest to stay on a stage manager's good side! Designers, crew heads, & crew members are all an integral part of this process. They deserve your respect. They are here to do their job, not work for you. Appreciate them!

5. Respect your peers.

As a cast, we need to be there to support one another. Laughing at someone if they mess up or making inappropriate comments about another's performance will not be tolerated. You should also never give acting advice or feeding lines to a fellow actor – that is solely the job of the directors and stage managers. Focusing on your work and being there to care for your cast mates are your most important jobs as actors.

6. Respect the space.

Please come in every day and set your backpacks & belongings in the black box risers. Do not leave any trash or belongings in the space when you leave. I will track you

down. The auditorium is our home, and we have to take care of it! This also means NEVER touching equipment, costumes or props unless specifically instructed to.

7. Come prepared.

You will need your script, a pencil, and a notebook every single day we are in rehearsal, even after you are off-book. In addition to this, please come to rehearsal dressed appropriately. It's never okay to be barefoot at rehearsal unless you are instructed to be. You should also bring homework to work on while you are offstage. Please do not forget to bring these items!

8. Come ready to work.

This show is going to be a lot of hard work, but if we commit, I am more than confident it will be amazing. I am the kind of director who likes to push my actors to grow and get the most out of their own experience, and I expect all of us to put in 110% to make sure this is a great production in every way. I do not tolerate talking backstage, being off-task, horseplay, or daydreaming while in rehearsal. There were a lot of people who auditioned for this show, and many willing to take your place if you are not up to the task of being as focused & dedicated as required. (snip snip)

9. Take notes.

Always be sure to <u>write down</u> notes that are given to you or are general cast notes. Taking notes on your cell phone is generally not acceptable. You should review your notes before the next rehearsal. If I have to give you the same note several times, that's a red flag you are not doing your job.

10. Know your deadlines.

Please refer to all rehearsals & deadlines on your calendar, as well as those announced in rehearsal, and keep up with them. *Check if you are called before asking if you are!* Off-book means THE SCRIPT IS OUT OF YOUR HANDS. If you need to call for a line during rehearsal, just say "line" nice and loudly and the SM or ASM will prompt you. Cut them off when you know it. Do not drop character or narrate your panic if you forget a line.

11. Check the callboard.

The callboard is located right outside my room (Black Box to Stage Left). This is where announcements, notes, and schedules will be posted. Please make it a point to stop by and look at it **at least once daily**.

12. Ask questions!

Never be afraid to ask a question to clarify!! It's ALWAYS better to ask than to go on not knowing, but ask a stage manager your question first before approaching me. If they don't have the answer, they'll know who to send you to.

13. Go big or go home!

NEVER be afraid to try new things as an actor. You should be working on this show outside of rehearsal and be able to come into rehearsals with new ideas. Sometimes it

takes 20 wrong ideas before you find the right one, so never limit yourself by not trying new things at all!

14. Work on the show outside of rehearsal.

If the directors only worked on this show during rehearsal hours, our performance would be a disaster! We expect that you will also devote the time outside of rehearsal to memorizing lines,

working on character development, & reviewing notes. There is too much to get done in rehearsal only. Do your part, pull your own weight, and show us that you are dedicated to this show.

15. Stay healthy!

Your body and your voice are your instruments as actors, so it's your job to make sure you are taking proper care of them! Being involved in a production means you should take extra precautions against getting sick or injured. Make sure to wash your hands, don't share food or drinks, and NEVER COME TO REHEARSAL IF YOU ARE CONTAGIOUS. This also means the next few months isn't the time to take up a dangerous sport or to be getting into a fight.

16. School comes first.

Your grades are your utmost priority. It doesn't matter how talented you are or how much time you have invested in rehearsal if you are not passing your classes. Please be responsible and keep up with schoolwork during this busy process, and expect to spend any downtime at rehearsal doing homework and/or studying.

17. Have a sense of humor!

We will be spending a lot of time together. You will make new friends and some great memories. However, sometimes there is such a thing as "too much togetherness," and people can become overly-sensitive. It's imperative that we <u>all</u> stay aware of our interactions with others and be able to laugh at ourselves. Taking yourself too seriously will result in overreactions and unnecessary drama. Leave the drama for the stage!!

18. Do not starve to death.

You are always allowed snacks on rehearsal days. In fact, please bring snacks. They keep you from getting cranky. The only time you are not allowed to eat is while you are onstage or in costume. Toward the end of this process, we have some long rehearsals when some meals will be provided. However, please plan accordingly on these nights & pack extra snacks so I don't have to worry about blood sugar crashes. Also, water is your friend. Keep hydrated.

19. Communication, communication!

Keeping me in the loop with what is going on with you is so vital. If something comes up, or you are stressed out or struggling in any way, I need to know so that I can help you! It's always better for me to hear something from you than through the theatre grape vine.

20. Every day is an audition.

Remember, your conduct, reliability and performance in this production will influence my decisions concerning future productions. When it comes down to it, I pick responsibility over talent every time. Make sure you are not doing anything to jeopardize your spot in shows to come!

Performance Guidelines

- 1. All cast members must arrive 2 hours before curtain. If the show is at 7pm, you must arrive no later than 5:00pm.
- 2. Cast will begin a group warm-up led by a student leader before the show at a scheduled time. ALL cast must be at this at the correct time, or demerits may be issued.
- Cast members must do their hair/make-up and get into costume (check all costumes pieces if you have costume changes) and be ready by the warm-up time.
- Before the house opens (audience enters), all actors must check their props and walk their blocking. VERY IMPORTANT: IF YOU DO NOT HANDLE THE PROP ONSTAGE. YOU DO NOT TOUCH IT OFFSTAGE. EVER.
- 5. There is no talking backstage. You may think you're talking quietly, but the audience can hear the whispering.
- 6. No peeking at the show/audience while you are backstage. If you can see the audience, they can see you.
- Treat the costumes with respect. After curtain call, hang up your costume in its proper place. There is no eating/ drinking (with the exception of water) in costume.
- 8. Check in with the director before leaving for the night. All set/props/costumes must be striked properly and the dressing rooms must be cleaned/organized. Leaving before the clear is given will result in demerits.
- 9. Students must be picked up promptly at the end of a performance.

School Owned Property

Costumes Guidelines for wearing any costume piece (owned or rented by MHS):

- Must remain in the classroom when not in use.
- No eating of any kind in costume.
- No drinking any drink except water in costume.
- No leaving the stage or classroom area in costume (especially no going outside in costume!)
- When used in an off-campus production, the actor is responsible for keeping all
 pieces together in a garment bag when not in use. Returning all pieces to the
 director or Wardrobe Supervisor within three days after the completion of the
 show.

<u>Properties Guidelines for property use:</u>

- Each prop will have a designated space in the prop area. All props must be in their space when not in use.
- No person is to touch any prop other than the one they use in the show.
- Props are not toys and should NEVER be played with. A prop should only be used as directed in the play.
- Any non-accidental damage will incur a replacement fee.
- When used in an off-campus production, the Stage Manager is responsible for keeping all props in the prop bucket when not in use. It is the Actor's responsibility to return props to the Stage Manager when they are finished.

<u>Lighting</u>, Sound and Rigging Equipment Guidelines for lighting and sound equipment usage:

- No student will touch any lighting, sound or rigging equipment without first being trained by a Director to use that particular piece of equipment.
- Equipment is stored in the stage closet when not in use.
- Equipment is used only for the purpose for which it was intended.
- Absolutely no horseplay of any kind is allowed near the equipment (including throwing athletic balls, running, wrestling, etc.).
- Absolutely NO food or drink (besides a water bottle with a lid) is allowed on rail or in the lighting booth.
- Any non-accidental damage will incur a replacement fee. When using Light and Sound equipment in another facility, the above guidelines are strictly enforced as well as any other guidelines instructed by the facility being used.

MISD and MHS have the right to enforce replacement of damaged or missing theatre properties.



Theatre activities are governed by the policies of the Mabank Board of Trustees, Texas Education Agency, University Interscholastic League (UIL), and the individual schools (Mabank High School).

Texas Education Agency's "no pass/no play" rule governs all "extra-curricular" activities including any theatrical event that charges admission. This generally will encompass all after school theatrical events on campus with the exception of theatre class graded shows or any other admission free performance.

Students must earn a 70% or above in all classes including all Pre AP courses and electives to maintain eligibility status except courses listed in the official TEA guidelines. Other details concerning eligibility will be communicated regularly in class.

This means if a student is deemed "Ineligible" they can only attend a performance if they are a paying patron. These students can not be backstage offering support.



Thespian Honor Society

The International Thespian Society is an Honor Society for Theatre students. It is by invitation only through eligibility based on points. We are Troupe 2149.

The International Thespian Society is composed of student elected officers. Within the society, the students may organize and enjoy dances, parties and field trips aimed at improving the ensemble relationships within the theatre department. The troupe may travel annually to the State Thespian Convention to participate in workshops, activities, and auditions for scholarships. If students qualify at the state level, they will be eligible to travel to the annual National convention in June.

Thespians are expected to attend all Thespian activities, including the induction ceremony at the end of the year, and be in multiple productions each year in some capacity.

Becoming a Thespian Society member is not difficult and once joined you are a member for life. To become a member, a student must earn 10 points (see the Thespian Point List) and pay a one time due of \$35.



Thespian Honor Society Points (subject to director's discretion)

Category	Position/work done	One Act Full	<u>Length</u>	Category	Position/work done	One Act	Full	l Length
Acting	Major role	4	8	Directing	Director		4	8
	Minor role	3	5		Assistant director		3	6
	Walk-on	1	2		Vocal director		3	6
	Chorus	1	3		Video producer/director		3	4
	Dancer	1	3		Assistant vocal director		2	5
	Understudy	1	2		Orchestra or band director		3	6
					Assistant orchestra or band director		2	5
Production	Stage manager	4	8		Choreographer		4	7
	Stage crew	2	4		Assistant choreographer		3	5
	Lighting technician	3	6					
	Lighting crew	2	3	Writing	Original play (produced)		5	8
	Set designer	4	5		Original radio script (produced)		4	6
	Set construction crew	3	5		Original TV script (produced)		4	6
	Costumer	3	6		Original play (unproduced)		1	2
	Costume crew	2	5		Original radio script (unproduced)		.5	1.5
	Properties manager	3	5		Original TV script (unproduced)		.5	1.5
	Properties crew	2	3					
	Sound technician	3	5	Miscellaneous	Oral interpretation			2
	Sound crew	2	3		Duet acting scenes			2
	Video editor	1.5	2		Participation in theatre festival or contest			3
	Video crew	1.5	3		Attending theatre festival			1/day
	Makeup manager	3	5		Assembly program			1
	Rehearsal prompter	2	4					
	Pianist	3	6	Advocacy	Participation in advocacy event			1/day
	Musicians	2	3		Local advocacy work			.1/hour
Business	Business manager	4	6	Officers	President			6
	Business crew	2	4		Vice president, treasurer, or web editor			4
	Publicity manager	3	5		Secretary/clerk			5
	Publicity crew	2	3		International Thespian Officer (ITO)			10
	Ticket manager	2	4		State Thespian Officer (STO)			8
	Ticket crew	1	3					
	House manager	2	4	Audience	Troupe directors may award points at the hourly			
	House crew	1	2		rate for attending productions, or they may award .5 $$			
	Ushers	1	2		point for attending and writing a critique or report			
	Programs	1	3		reflecting the educational value of the experience.			
	Program crew	1	2					

Letterman Jackets

Students wishing to Letter in Theatre must actively enrolled in a theatre class and meet the following criteria:

- Be academically eligible.
- Be cast as an Actor, Technician or Alternate for 2 UIL OAP Productions
- Be cast as an Actor, Technician or Alternate for at least 1 Musical Production
- Be cast as an Actor, Technician or Alternate for at 1 additional Production
- Be a member of the Thespian Honor Society and have earned at least 30 Points
- Once these areas have been met, students will be given an opportunity to purchase their Letter sweaters and can earn patches as they progress through the department (at the appropriate times of the year).